MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF CITY COUNCIL HELD ON MONDAY, JUNE 29, 2009 AT 7:30 PM IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, CIVIC ADMINISTRATION BUILDING, BRANDON, MANITOBA

PRESENT: Mayor D. Burgess in the Chair, Councillor V. Barletta, Councillor E. Black, Councillor M. Blight,

Councillor M. Campbell, Councillor K. Fitzpatrick, Councillor J. Harwood, Councillor D. Jessiman,

Councillor J. McCrae, Councillor D. Paterson, Councillor G. Rice

ABSENT: Nil

# **ADOPTION OF AGENDA**:

Harwood-Blight

That the Agenda for the Regular Meeting of City Council to be held on Monday, June 29, 2009 be

adopted as presented. CARRIED.

# **CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES:**

### Rice-McCrae

That the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of City Council held on Monday, June 15, 2009 be taken as read and so adopted, all statutory requirements having been fulfilled. CARRIED.

# **HEARING OF DELEGATIONS:**

### (A) GLEN KRUK - REPORT CARD ON HOUSING AND HOMELESSNESS

Glen Kruk, Regional Manager of the Canadian Mental Health Association appeared before City Council to discuss the Report Card on Housing and Homelessness in the City of Brandon. He noted that the document was in the form of a report card to allow for the grading and monitoring of progress on the housing and homelessness crisis in the City. He advised that the City of Brandon had received a C minus grade, whereby assistance from all three levels of government was required to obtain any grade improvements. He added that the City of Brandon was the first to deliver this document to all households, and thanked City Council for their ongoing support for social housing projects within the City, including the Massey Building Project.

### Harwood-Paterson

That the presentation by Glen Kruk with respect to the Report Card on Housing and Homelessness in the City of Brandon, 2008 be received. CARRIED.

# (B) <u>DAN ROBERTSON - UPDATE ON KEYSTONE CENTRE</u>

Dan Robertson, General Manager of the Keystone Centre appeared before City Council and provided an update on the current renovations to the Keystone Centre. He noted that although the filming of a major movie and several graduation ceremonies had virtually halted the construction, renovations for the 2010 Memorial Cup were currently on schedule and within budget. He added that many minor upgrades, such as painting, etc. were taking place throughout the entire facility, and further, that all regularly scheduled events were going forward throughout the Centre regardless of the construction.

#### **Black-Paterson**

That the presentation by Dan Robertson with respect to the update on the Keystone Centre be received. CARRIED.

# (C) <u>STEPHEN MONTAGUE - PARKING BY-LAW REVISIONS AT BRANDON UNIVERSITY</u>

Stephen Montague, President of the Brandon University Students' Union, appeared before City Council to discuss proposed amendments to the City of Brandon Traffic By-law with regard to parking in the vicinity of Brandon University. He noted that a 10% reduction in the number of available parking spots on site, an increase in the number of rural students, as well as a housing shortage forcing the students to live further away from the campus had all contributed to an increase in the number of students parking on the street. He added that due to the length of most classes, one hour parking was not feasible and requested that City Council approve the proposed amendments to the Traffic By-law whereby all one-hour parking in the vicinity of Brandon University would be converted to two-hour parking.

# Harwood-Paterson

1061

That the presentation by Stephen Montague with respect to proposed amendments to the Traffic By-law regarding parking at Brandon University be received. CARRIED.

# **PUBLIC HEARINGS:**

Nil

# **COMMUNICATION & PETITIONS:**

Nil

#### **COMMITTEE REPORTS:**

# (A) BRANDON MUNICIPAL HERITAGE ADVISORY COMMITTEE JUNE 17, 2009

Brandon, Manitoba June 17, 2009

Mayor and Councillors City of Brandon

Your Municipal Heritage Advisory Committee begs leave to report as follows and submits recommendations where deemed necessary and expedient:

<u>Committee Members</u>: Councillor Jeff Harwood (Chairperson), Councillor Doug Paterson, Tom Mitchell, David Hughes, Bill Chester, Reg Hildebrand, Gerry Beaubier, Shari Decter-Hirst, Greg Hutsal, Eleanor McCallum

Advisory Members: Brad McKay (Senior Fire Prevention Officer), Angie Clark (Senior Planner - City of Brandon Planning and Development Services), Marty Snelling (General Manager, Brandon Neighbourhood Renewal Corporation), Heather Ewasiuk (Deputy City Clerk), Michael Luptak (Heritage Assistant)

# (1) Signage for Daly Overpass

The Brandon Municipal Heritage Advisory Committee has identified the continuation of the heritage plaque program and development of suitable recognition for significant heritage sites as one of its objectives in the Brandon Heritage Resource Management Plan 2009-2012 endorsed by City Council. The Committee has acknowledged the 18th Street Overpass as a significant structure in the City of Brandon and has approached the Province of Manitoba Department of Infrastructure and Transportation as to the process required to have official signage erected to designate the overpass as "Daly Overpass".

The Department has confirmed that in order to initiate the process of signing this site as the "Daly Overpass", a resolution of City Council will be required requesting that the overpass be formally recognized as such.

Once the resolution has been received, the Department will initiate the manufacture and installation of the signage on a cost recovery basis. The Department has prepared two proposals for the signs which are attached. The Committee is recommending the use of Proposal A as it is similar in style to the street signs erected in the downtown area. The signs will measure 900 mm x 900 mm (3 ft. x 3 ft.) and will cost \$300 each plus GST to manufacture and install. The BMHAC has funds within its 2009 Operating Budget to cover the cost of same.

#### **RECOMMENDATION:**

That the Province of Manitoba Department of Infrastructure and Transportation be requested to formally recognize the 18th Street overpass in the City of Brandon as the "Daly Overpass" and proceed with the manufacturing and installation of signage on the south and north sides of the overpass to designate same, whereby the related cost shall be assumed by the City of Brandon.

Respectfully submitted,

"J. Harwood"

Councillor Jeff Harwood, CHAIRPERSON Brandon Municipal Heritage Advisory Committee

#### Harwood-Paterson

That the report of the Brandon Municipal Heritage Advisory Committee from its meeting held June 17, 2009 be received. CARRIED.

#### Harwood-Paterson

1063

That the Province of Manitoba Department of Infrastructure and Transportation be requested to formally recognize the 18th Street overpass in the City of Brandon as the "Daly Overpass" and proceed with the manufacturing and installation of signage on the south and north sides of the overpass to designate same, whereby the related cost shall be assumed by the City of Brandon. CARRIED.

# (B) ASSOCIATION OF MANITOBA MUNICIPALITIES DISTRICT MEETING VERBAL JUNE 29, 2009

June 29, 2009 Brandon, Manitoba

Mayor and Councillors City of Brandon

Councillor Black reported that he had recently attended the Association of Manitoba Municipalities (AMM) June District Meeting in Killarney, Manitoba on Wednesday, June 17, 2009 and provided an update on same.

He advised that the City of Brandon had brought forward two resolutions to that meeting. The resolution calling for the paving of the shoulders along the Trans Canada Highway from the Saskatchewan border to the Ontario border was defeated. He noted that the Province of Manitoba already intended to pave the shoulders of the Trans Canada Highway from the Saskatchewan border to Brandon in 2009 and from Brandon to Winnipeg in 2010.

The second resolution called for the Association of Manitoba Municipalities (AMM) to lobby the Province of Manitoba and the Government of Canada to support the work of the Heritage Canada Foundation and the Federation of Canadian Municipalities to establish tax incentives which would endorse private sector investment in the rehabilitation of heritage properties and same was passed unanimously.

Councillor Black reported several other resolutions were passed including a motion to lobby the Provincial Government to make water, sewer and transportation needs a priority for the Building Canada Funding and all future Canada-Manitoba infrastructure programs, and a motion for AMM to form a Steering Committee to identify barriers to women's participation in municipal government.

Councillor Black, on behalf of AMM, presented long service pins to His Worship the Mayor and his fellow Councillors. Councillor McCrae received his five-year pin, His Worship the Mayor and Councillor Paterson received their ten-year pins, and Councillor Campbell received her twenty-year pin.

# (C) GENERAL MUSEUM ADVISORY COMMITTEE (GMAC) VERBAL

JUNE 29, 2009

June 29, 2009 Brandon, Manitoba

Mayor and Councillors City of Brandon

Councillor Black reported that the General Museum Advisory Committee (GMAC) had recently been officially incorporated as Brandon General Museum and Archives Inc.

# (D) WESTERN MANITOBA REGIONAL LIBRARY BOARD VERBAL REPORT

JUNE 29, 2009

June 29, 2009 Brandon, Manitoba

Mayor and Councillors City of Brandon

Councillor Jessiman reported that he had attended the Western Manitoba Regional Library Board meeting held June 24, 2009 in Neepawa. He advised that the meeting was well attended and that the Board continued to operate within the allotted budget. He added that the use of Spanish reading material as well as internet usage had increased significantly in both the Carberry and Brandon libraries.

# Paterson-Fitzpatrick

1064

That the verbal reports by Councillor Black and Councillor Jessiman with respect to the Association of Manitoba Municipalities June District Meeting, the General Museum Advisory Committee and the Western Manitoba Regional Library Board respectively be received. CARRIED.

# **ENQUIRIES**:

# (622) BOULEVARD MOWING

Councillor Campbell advised that she had received a call from an area resident who was unable to mow her boulevard due to rocks having been pushed onto the boulevard during winter snow removal causing damage to her mower. She enquired as to the possibility of City crews clearing up same prior to mowing season.

His Worship the Mayor agreed to take the matter under advisement.

#### (623) MANITOBA PUBLIC INSURANCE REBATES

Councilor Rice referred to a recent Council Update which had indicated that the City of Brandon had received a rebate cheque in an amount close to \$20,000 from Manitoba Public Insurance due to employees' exemplary defensive driving skills over the past year. He enquired whether the statistics provided in the Council Updates could be used as a baseline to track the rise and fall of claims over the years to offer incentives to departments.

His Worship the Mayor agreed to take the matter under advisement.

#### (624) RECYCLING BINS FOR SCHOOLS

Councillor Harwood enquired whether it would be possible for the City of Brandon and the Brandon School Division to work together on a pilot project to promote recycling in Brandon schools, especially Kindergarten to Grade 8, by placing recycling bins in the schools. He suggested that the bins could be picked up by the Sanitation Department on the regular scheduled garbage day. Councillor Harwood noted that currently there was no recycling program at the schools and that teachers were taking items home for recycling to prevent them from going into the landfill. He enquired if a recycling pilot project could begin in the Fall of 2009.

His Worship the Mayor agreed to take this matter under advisement.

#### (625) BICYCLE TRAFFIC ON FIRST STREET FROM RICHMOND AVENUE TO PACIFIC AVENUE

Councillor Jessiman noted his concern regarding the difficulty for bicycle traffic to travel on 1st Street due to heavy industrial traffic. He suggested that the Administration meet with the Manitoba Department of Infrastructure and Transportation to determine a solution.

His Worship the Mayor agreed to take this matter under advisement, but suggested that 1st Street was not ideal for bicycle traffic and recommended that bicyclists should use alternative routes.

### (626) SPLASH PARK ON ABERDEEN AVENUE

Councillor Jessiman enquired as to when the new Kin Splash Park at 1st Street and Aberdeen Avenue would be open to the public.

At the request of His Worship the Mayor, the General Manager of Operations advised that the splash park would be open the first or second week of July and would remain open until the end of August.

#### (627) EXPANSION OF BICYCLE PATHS

Councillor Black referred to a previous decision of City Council to expand the bicycle paths throughout the city and enquired as to how the project was progressing.

At the request of His Worship the Mayor, the General Manager of Operations advised that work was currently underway on a bike path and walkway that would connect Coronation Park and Rideau Park using Lorne Avenue as the main artery. He noted that there were some space restrictions which had to be overcome and stated that connecting the bicycle paths and walkways within Brandon had been an ongoing project for a number of years. He further advised that Development Services continued to work with developers to ensure that the design of new developments allowed adequate space to incorporate walkways and bicycle paths.

#### (628) PUBLIC PARK AT FORMER WEISS/IMPERIAL OIL PROPERTY

Councillor Black advised that he had received a number of phone calls from local residents enquiring as to when the park located at the former Weiss/Imperial Oil property would reach completion and the snow fences would be taken down.

At the request of His Worship the Mayor, the City Manager advised that Development Services and Operational Services were working together to have the park completed by the end of the summer, and that more specific details would be provided once available. He further noted that the snow fence would be removed upon completion of the park.

# (629) VOLUME OF EMERGENCY SIRENS

Councillor Black advised that he had been approached by individuals in regard to the volume of the emergency sirens, stating that they were unable to hear the sirens. He enquired whether the volume of the emergency sirens could be increased.

At the request of His Worship the Mayor, the Emergency Coordinator stated that there had been mixed results in response to the first test of the year, but he believed that some adjustments could be made to improve the volume of the siren. He added that the current system had four times the volume as the system tested in 2003.

Further to the above, Councillor Campbell enquired as to the distance the emergency sirens could be heard.

His Worship the Mayor agreed to take the matter under advisement.

#### (630) COLLECTION BINS FOR YARD WASTE

Councillor Black advised that he had received several complaints regarding the foul smell coming from yard waste collection bins due to them overflowing. He enquired whether some of the regular waste bins could be converted to yard waste collection bins during the summer months.

At the request of His Worship the Mayor, the General Manager of Operations advised that they were currently in the process of converting more old waste bins into yard waste collection bins. He agreed that some collection sites had additional space where more yard collection bins could be added and that some of the recycling bins for glass and paper were not being used to the same extent and could be replaced with yard waste collection bins. Members of Council and the general public were reminded that the yard waste bins were only to be used for yard waste which did not include tree branches. He assured City Council that the yard waste bins were being picked up seven days a week and advised that people should notify his office if there were problems in any area.

#### (631) INFRASTRUCTURE NEEDS ASSESSMENT

Councillor Black referred to a recent article in the Globe and Mail whereby the Federation of Canadian Municipalities reported the need for \$30 Billion to be invested in infrastructure upgrades, an estimated \$80 Billion in the next 10 years to restore obsolete pipelines, and the need for 80% of all public infrastructure to be replaced. He enquired whether an infrastructure requirement assessment could be completed and whether the Insurance Bureau of Canada could be contacted to find out what types of claims have been generated in Brandon.

His Worship the Mayor agreed to take the matter under advisement.

#### (632) WEEDS AT THE BRANDON CEMETERY VETERANS' SECTION

Councillor McCrae advised that the Veterans' Section of the Brandon Cemetery was overgrown with weeds and enquired whether the weed situation could be assessed.

His Worship the Mayor agreed to take the matter under advisement.

#### (633) <u>LIABILITY OF MOWING BOULEVARDS</u>

Councillor McCrae enquired whether legal counsel should be present during discussions on the boulevard mowing by-law at the next City Council meeting to discuss potential liability issues.

His Worship the Mayor advised that a legal opinion had previously been provided on the matter and would be forwarded to City Council.

# (634) WAIVING OF TRANSIT FEES FOR POST SECONDARY STUDENTS

Councillor Fitzpatrick enquired whether the program to waive transit fees for Brandon University and Assiniboine Community College students during the month of September would be implemented once again this fall.

His Worship the Mayor agreed to take the matter under advisement.

### (635) SPRAY PARK AT WESTRIDGE COMMUNITY PARK AND PLAYGROUND

Councillor Fitzpatrick enquired as to the progress of the spray park planned for the Westridge Community Park and Playground and whether it was still scheduled to open in 2010.

His Worship the Mayor agreed to take the matter under advisement.

#### (636) OVERGROWN GRASS AND WEEDS IN VICTORIA WARD

Councillor Blight advised that the boulevards along 34th Street and Richmond Avenue were overtaken with weeds, and further, that the trees along the south side of Victoria Avenue West were overgrown, causing an accumulation of garbage and concern for people's safety. He enquired whether the situation could be addressed.

His Worship the Mayor agreed to take the matter under advisement.

#### (637) MOWING OF GRASS BY CITY STAFF

Councillor Campbell advised that she had called the Director of Community Services a number of times regarding problem areas where the grass was not being cut. She stated that in previous years, the complaints were looked after promptly but due to a continual breakdown of grass cutting equipment, the Department was unable to respond as quickly as usual. She enquired whether there was a need for additional staff and new equipment in order to keep the mowing on schedule.

His Worship the Mayor agreed to take the matter under advisement.

#### **ANNOUNCEMENTS:**

#### FACILITATING PICK UP OF SANITATION BINS

Councillor McCrae announced that heavily treed back lanes could impede the ability of City crews to pick up the sanitation bins. He encouraged the public to assess their trees and how they are impacting the pick up of garbage and take corrective action. Councillor McCrae also noted that trees may be an annoyance for neighbours and encouraged the public to discuss those issues in a neighbourly fashion.

## LEON'S FURNITUTRE 100TH ANNIVERSARY CELEBRATION

Councillor Blight announced that he had represented City Council at the 100th Anniversary of Leon's Furniture last week. He noted that Terry Leon, President of the company was present at the celebration and that balloons containing gift certificates had been released into the sky as part of the event.

#### TAKE PRIDE PLASTIC BAG RECYCLING PROGRAM

Councillor Blight announced that the Take Pride plastic bag recycling program would be implemented in October. He noted that plastic bags collected at schools would be converted into tables for the schools. Councillor Blight encouraged the public to participate by collecting their plastic bags over the next three months to contribute to the project. He stated that further information would be provided to the Administration once it was available.

#### FEDERATION OF CANADIAN MUNICIPALITIES - JET SERVICE INCENTIVE PROGRAM

Councillor Paterson announced that Federation of Canadian Municipalities (FCM) members from communities without jet service had met at the recent Annual FCM Convention in Whistler, B.C. regarding the potential for jet service in smaller communities. He reported that the meeting was not very well attended, but that those who participated had been very enthusiastic. He stated that Councillor Harwood and himself would re-examine the issue to determine if it should be revisited by Council, and perhaps have His Worship the Mayor compose formal letters to the mayors of communities similar to Brandon regarding the Jet Service Incentive Program.

# **GENERAL BUSINESS:**

1065

# (A) COMMUNITY EVENT PROPOSAL - 2009 ROCK THE BLOCK STREET PARTY (BUSU)

City Council considered a report from the General Manager of Operational Services dated June 24, 2009 with respect to the above.

# Barletta-Rice

That the Brandon University Students' Union apply for and receive all applicable permits and authorizations for the Rock the Block Street Party being held September 17 and 18, 2009, whereby in support of this event:

- 1) the Rock the Block Street Party is deemed a Community Event in the City of Brandon;
- 2) Rosser Avenue between 7th and 9th Streets shall be closed to vehicle traffic from 10:00 a.m. on September 17, 2009 until 3:00 a.m. on September 18, 2009;
- 3) the noise restriction set-out in Nuisance By-law No. 5806 with respect to the sound emanating from any musical instrument or loud speaker be hereby waived during the event; and

- 4) gift-in-kind contributions in the form of no parking signs, barricades and garbage containers/pickup for the event shall be provided by the City of Brandon Operations Division. CARRIED.
- (B) APPLICATION TO SUBDIVIDE 2320 LOUISE AVENUE (CITY OF BRANDON/BRANDON SCHOOL DIVISION)

Considered was a report from Planning Services dated June 16, 2009 with respect to the above.

## Harwood-Jessiman

1066

1067

That the application of the City of Brandon on behalf of the owner, The Brandon School Division No. 40 and The School District of Brandon Number 129, to subdivide 2320 Louise Avenue (Lots 1/38 and closed lanes in Blocks 47 and 48, Plan 15, part of 24th Street (closed) and Parcel A, Plan 37958 BLTO) be approved subject to:

- 1) confirmation from the City of Brandon Director of Finance that outstanding taxes on the subject lands have been paid;
- 2) confirmation from Manitoba Hydro that the owner has executed a blanket easement agreement with Manitoba Hydro, MTS, and Westman Communications Group; and
- at the time of development of proposed Parcels A, B, and D, the owner of each said parcel paying a one time fee for contributions to public reserve lands pursuant to Section 136(1) of The Planning Act whereby said fee will be calculated based on the City of Brandon's value for bare land per acre at the time a permit for each parcel is applied for. CARRIED.

# (C) PARKING RESTRICTIONS - UNIVERSITY AREA

Submitted for consideration was a report from the General Manager of Development Services dated June 16, 2009 with respect to the above.

# Harwood-Paterson

That the parking restrictions in the Brandon University area be referred back to Administration for preparation of a by-law to amend the Traffic By-law to:

- 1) convert the following streets from a one hour to a two hour parking restriction:
  - Louise Avenue from the east boundary of 21st Street east to the lane between 21st Street and 20th Street;
  - Lorne Avenue from the east boundary of 21st Street east to the lane between 21st Street and 20th Street:
  - Princess Avenue, north side between 18th Street and the east boundary of 21st Street.
- 2) modify Schedule "M" to include the following words: "September 1 to April 30"; and
- 3) add the following streets to the list of two hour parking restrictions:
  - Louise Avenue (both north and south sides) from the west side of 20th Street west to the north/south lane;
    - -Louise Avenue (south side) from the west side of 18th Street to the east limit of 20th Street; and
  - the west side of 20th Street from Louise Avenue north to approximately the northerly limits of the extension of Lorne Avenue;

and further, that under the Order of By-laws, a motion be put forth that amending By-law No. 6948 be given no further readings. LOST.

# (D) PURCHASE OF PART OF 801 PACIFIC AVENUE

City Council considered a report from the General Manager of Development Services dated June 16, 2009 with respect to the above.

#### **Barletta-Rice**

1068 That the C

That the City of Brandon purchase the westerly 40' of 801 Pacific Avenue (Lot 1, Plan 2429 BLTO) from Vanguard Credit Union Limited for the sum of \$4,556.00 for the purpose of repairing and maintaining the Eighth Street Bridge, whereby said funds shall be expended from the Land Acquisition Reserve. CARRIED.

(E) PURCHASE OF LOT H, PLAN 25221 TO ESTABLISH AN EAST/WEST LANE NORTH OF MCDONALD AVENUE, WEST OF 19TH STREET NORTH

Considered was a report from the General Manager of Development Services dated June 16, 2009 with respect to the above.

# Paterson-Fitzpatrick

1069

That the City of Brandon purchase approximately 0.29 acres of property legally described as Lot H, Plan 25221 BLTO from the private owners for the sum of \$5,400.00 to legally establish an east/west lane north of McDonald Avenue and West of 19th Street North whereby said funds shall be expended from the Land Acquisition Reserve. CARRIED.

(F) TENDER - MATERIAL RECOVERY FACILITY GEOTHERMAL HEATING SYSTEM UPGRADE

Submitted for consideration was a report from the General Manager of Operational Services dated June 23, 2009 with respect to the above.

### Black-Jessiman

1070

That the bid of Brandon Heating and Plumbing for the Material Recovery Facility Geothermal Heating System Upgrade as per tender and specifications at a total cost of \$315,283.50 be accepted. CARRIED.

#### **BY-LAWS:**

NO. 6934

TO OPEN WHISTLER DRIVE NORTH OF BRAECREST DRIVE AND SOUTH OF MOCKINGBIRD DRIVE (PARCELS A AND B, PLAN 48187)
2ND AND 3RD READINGS

It was noted that this by-law had received first reading at the February 17, 2009 meeting of City Council.

# Paterson-Fitzpatrick

1071

That By-Law No. 6934 to open Whistler Drive, north of Braecrest Drive and south of Mockingbird Drive as a right-of-way be read a second time. CARRIED.

At the request of Councillor Jessiman, a recorded vote was taken on the above motion.

FOR AGAINST

His Worship Mayor Burgess Councillor Jessiman

Councillor Barletta

Councillor Black

Councillor Blight

Councillor Campbell

Councillor Fitzpatrick

Councillor Harwood

Councillor McCrae

Councillor Paterson

Councillor Rice

# Paterson-McCrae

That the third and final reading of By-Law No. 6934 to open Whistler Drive, north of Braecrest Drive and south of Mockingbird Drive as a right-of-way be referred to the July 20, 2009 meeting of City Council to allow for notification to area residents. CARRIED.

NO. 6948 - TO AMEND TRAFFIC BY-LAW NO. 5463 WITH RESPECT TO PARKING RESTRICTIONS AROUND BRANDON UNIVERSITY 2ND AND 3RD READINGS

It was noted that this by-law received first reading at the June 15, 2009 meeting of City Council.

#### Fitzpatrick-Harwood

That By-law No. 6948, to amend Traffic By-law No. 5463 with respect to parking restrictions around Brandon University, be amended by modifying Schedule M to include the following words "September 1 to April 30". CARRIED.

At the request of Councillor Paterson, a recorded vote was taken on the above motion.

<u>FOR</u> <u>AGAINST</u>

His Worship Mayor Burgess

Councillor Barletta

Councillor Black

Councillor Blight

Councillor Campbell

Councillor Fitzpatrick

Councillor Harwood

Councillor Jessiman

Councillor McCrae

Councillor Paterson

Councillor Rice

# Harwood-Barletta

That By-law No. 6948 to amend Traffic By-law No. 5463 with respect to parking restrictions around Brandon University, as amended, be read a second time. CARRIED.

At the request of Councillor Paterson, a recorded vote was taken on the above motion.

Nil

Nil

<u>FOR</u> <u>AGAINST</u>

His Worship Mayor Burgess

Councillor Barletta

Councillor Black

Councillor Blight

Councillor Campbell

Councillor Fitzpatrick

Councillor Harwood

Councillor Jessiman

Councillor McCrae

Councillor Paterson

Councillor Rice

# Harwood-Fitzpatrick

That the by-law be read a third and final time. CARRIED.

In accordance with Section 137 of the Municipal Act a recorded vote was taken on the motion to give By-law No. 6948, as amended, third and final reading.

<u>FOR</u> <u>AGAINST</u>

His Worship Mayor Burgess

Councillor Barletta

Councillor Black

Councillor Blight

Councillor Campbell

Councillor Fitzpatrick

Councillor Harwood

Councillor Jessiman

Councillor McCrae

Councillor Paterson

Councillor Rice

NO. 6951 - TO AMEND BY-LAW NO. 6942 TO CLOSE A PORTION OF PARK STREET, SOUTH OF VAN HORNE AVENUE IN PLAN 9

**1ST READING** 

City Council considered a report from the General Manager of Development Services dated May 28, 2009 with respect to the above.

#### **Black-Paterson**

That By-law No. 6951 to amend By-law No. 6942 to close and convey that portion of Park Street, south of Van Horne Avenue in Plan 9 to the City of Brandon, be read a first time. CARRIED.

NO. 6953 - TO AMEND BY-LAW NO. 6757 TO RENAME STREETS WITHIN THE PROPOSED BROOKWOOD PARK SUBDIVISION LOCATED WEST OF 34TH STREET AND SOUTH OF RICHMOND AVENUE (NE 1/4 9-10-19 WPM)

1ST READING

His Worship the Mayor declared a conflict of interest in this matter due to his relationship with the developer and left the Council Chamber without any further discussion.

Considered was a report from the General Manager of Development Services dated June 16, 2009 with respect to the above.

\_\_\_\_

1076

| 1077              | <u>Fitzpatrick-Jessiman</u> That By-law No. 6953 to amend By-law No. 6757 to rename streets within the proposed Brookwood Park Subdivision located west of 34th Street and south of Richmond Avenue (NE 1/4 9-10-19 WPM) be read a first time. CARRIED. |
|-------------------|---|
|                   | Following the above motion being vote on, His Worship the Mayor re-entered the Council Chamber.   |
| NO. 6954          | - TO PROVIDE FOR THE MANDATORY MOWING OF GRASS ON BOULEVARDS IN THE CITY OF BRANDON 1ST READING   |
|                   | Submitted was a report from His Worship the Mayor dated June 24, 2009 with respect to the above.  |
| 1078              | Burgess-Paterson That By-law No. 6954 to provide for the mowing of grass on boulevards in the City of Brandon be read a first time. CARRIED.  |
| GIVING OF NOTICE: |   |
|                   | Nil   |
| ADJOURN:          |   |
|                   | Blight-Barletta That the meeting do now adjourn (10:16 p.m.) CARRIED.   |

CITY CLERK

MAYOR